
          
 
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

 Click link to join meeting: https://zoom.us/j/96297175874 Meeting ID: 962 9717 5874 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 22, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, February 22, 2021 be approved 

as circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Oath of Office Ceremony & Inaugural Meeting, February 8, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Oath of Office Ceremony & the Inaugural Council 
 Meeting held February 8, 2021 be adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No Delegations  
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering, will provide a verbal update. 

Recommendation: 
That the verbal update provided by Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL 
Engineering, be received for information. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
February 22, 2021 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/96297175874


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  February 22, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\2.1 2021 02 22 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated February 22, 2021, regarding 
Changes to Internal Cost Allocations 
Recommendation: 
That Corporate Policy No. 217, titled “Internal Cost Allocations” be approved.  

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, 
report dated February 22, 2021 regarding Council Indemnity Increase  
Recommendation: 
That the Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 be read a 
first and second time. 

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, will provide an overview of the report 
provided by Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer, dated February 22, 2021 regarding 
the 2021 Belcarra By-Election 
Recommendation: 
That the report dated February 22, 2021 from the Chief Election Officer regarding 
the 2021 Belcarra By-Election be received for information.   

 
5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Pooni Group 

Memorandum – Year in Review 2020 – 2021 
Recommendation: 
That the memorandum dated January 27, 2021 from Pooni Group regarding the 
Year in Review 2020 – 2021 be received for information.   

 
5.6 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Short Term 

Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Policy update 
deferred at the Regular Council Meeting held March 9, 2020. 
Recommendations: 
That the Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) 
Policy update be lifted from the table; and 
That the Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) 
Policy update be brought forward to the Regular Council Meeting on March 8, 2021. 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
6.1 Councillor Wilder, report dated February 22, 2021 regarding Notice of Motion - 

New Docks in Bedwell Bay 
Recommendation: 

 That all new docks in Bedwell Bay be required to be group wharves with a 
minimum of 4 and maximum of 6 primary resident families; and 

 That existing single / Shared docks have the option to convert to a group wharf, 
with a minimum of 4 and a maximum of 6 primary resident families. 

 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  February 22, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\2.1 2021 02 22 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

6.2 Mayor Ross, verbal report regarding Share’s Virtual Imagine Gala 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That Council approve the purchase of one ticket, in the amount of $85.00, for 

Mayor Ross to attend Share’s Virtual Imagine Gala 2021 on behalf of the Village.   
7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 576, 2020 (Fire Sprinkler Heads) 
 Recommendation: 
 That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 576, 2020” be adopted 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.29 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Doug Allin, Head Coach Men’s, Mark Dunlop, Head Coach Women’s & Rick Benson, 
 Executive Director, Softball BC, letter received January 8, 2021 regarding Request 
 for COVID Relief Funding for Male & Female Softball Athletes at the 2022 Canada 
 Summer Games 

Recommendation: 
 That the Request for Financial Support for Male & Female Softball Athletes at the 
 2022 Canada Summer Games be forwarded to budget discussions for consideration. 
8.2 Gurinder Mann, Executive Director, Communities Embracing Restorative Action 
 (CERA) Society, letter dated December 27, 2020 regarding a Request for a 
 Community Grant for the Community Youth Justice Program 
 Recommendation: 
 That the request for a Community Grant in the amount of $353.00 to be provided to 
 the Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society for support of the 
 Community Youth Justice Program 2021 Fiscal Year be forwarded to 2021 Budget 
 discussions for consideration. 
8.3 Janice Boyle, Executive Director, Crossroads Hospice Society, letter received 
 December 28, 2020 regarding a Request for a Contribution  
 Recommendation: 
 That the Crossroads Hospice Society Request for a Contribution be forwarded to 
 budget discussions for consideration. 
8.4 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated February 11, 2021 regarding 
 Belcarra Community Path (full report available at the Village office) 
 Recommendation: 
 That the email from Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, dated February 11, 2021 
 regarding Belcarra Community Path be brought forward to 2021 Strategic Planning  



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  February 22, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\2.1 2021 02 22 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.5 Tara McKinley & Pauline Nielsen, Grad 2021 Co-Chairs, Heritage Woods Secondary 
 School, letter received February 15, 2021 regarding 2021 Commencement 
 Celebration 
 Recommendation: 
 That the request for a donation to the Heritage Woods Secondary School Grad 
 Celebration be forwarded to 2021 Budget discussions for consideration. 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.6 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated December 3, 2020 
 regarding Amending Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping our Future to Re-designate 
 Regional Parks Lands to Conservation and Recreation (full report available at the 
 Village office) 
8.7 Constable Deanna Law, Media Relations Officer, Coquitlam RCMP, letter 
 received December 10, 2020 regarding Coquitlam RCMP Welcomes a New 
 Officer in Charge 
8.8 Kerri Palmer Isaak, Chair, Board of Education, letter dated December 11, 2020 
 regarding Directions 2025 Strategic Goals and Objectives (full report available at the 
 Village office) 
8.9 Jason Krott, Manager, Marine Operations & Fleet, Vancouver Fraser Port Authority, 
 letter dated December 11, 2020 regarding Buoys for Speed Control in Indian Arm  
8.10 Tony Geheran, Executive Vice-President & Chief Customer Officer & Rob Aiello, 
 General Manager, Telus, letter dated December 15, 2020 regarding letter of 
 Appreciation & Seasons Greetings 
8.11 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated December 15, 2020 
 regarding the Appointment of Councillor Clark to 2021 Metro Vancouver Committees 
8.12 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated December 16, 2020 
 regarding Policy Review Summaries – Update to Metro 2040, the Regional Growth 
 Strategy (full report available at the Village office)  
8.13 Kathy Moore, Mayor, City of Rossland, letter dated December 16, 2020 regarding 
 letter to Honourable Premier John Horgan, Honourable Minister Selina Robinson, 
 Honourable Minister Adrian Dix and Honourable MLA Katherine Conroy, regarding 
 Letter of Support for the Corporation of the City of Vernon for Universal No-Cost 
 Access to All Prescription Contraception Available in BC Under the Medical Services 
 Plan 
8.14 Margo Wagner, Chair, Cariboo Regional District, Gabe Fourchalk, Mayor, District 
 of Wells, Bob Simpson, Mayor, City of Quesnel, Walt Cobb, Mayor, City of 
 Williams Lake, Mitch Campsall, Mayor, District of 100 Mile House, letter dated 
 December 18, 2020 to BC Utilities Commission regarding BC Hydro Streetlighting 
 Rate Increase / Termination of Private Light Systems 
8.15 Ken Christian, Mayor, City of Kamloops, letter dated December 18, 2020 regarding 
 Overdose Crisis and Call for Overdose Action Plan  
8.16 Chris O’Riley, President & CEO, BC Hydro, letter received December 23, 2020 
 regarding Community Relations Annual Report (full report available at the Village 
 office) 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  February 22, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\2.1 2021 02 22 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.17 Sean Galloway, Director, Regional Planning & Electoral Area Services, Metro 
 Vancouver, letter dated December 23, 2020 regarding Policy Review Summaries – 
 Update to Metro 2040, the Regional Growth Strategy 
8.18 John Dooley, Mayor, City of Nelson, letter dated January 8, 2021 to Honourable 
 Adrian Dix, Minister of Health, Government of British Columbia regarding 
 Vaccination Priority for Essential Critical Infrastructure Municipal Employees 
8.19 Linda Buchanan, Mayor, City of North Vancouver, letter dated January 11, 2021 to 
 Honourable George Heyman, Minister of Environment & Climate Change Strategy 
 & Minister Responsible for TransLink regarding Implementing a Province-wide Ban 
 on Anticoagulant Rodenticides 
8.20 Geoff Bowlby, Director General, Census Management Office, Statistics Canada, 
 Government of Canada, letter dated January 13, 2021 regarding 2021 Census of 
 Population 
8.21 Jerry Dobrovolny, Commissioner / Chief Administrative Officer, Metro Vancouver, 
 letter dated January 21, 2021 regarding Regional Greenways 2050 (full report 
 available at the Village office). 
8.22 Mayor Jack Crompton, Lower Mainland Local Government Association, Past 
 President, letter dated January 26, 2021 regarding 2021 Call for Nominations for 
 Lower Mainland LGA Executive & 2021 Virtual AGM & Convention Resolutions 
 Notice, Request for Submissions  
8.23 Nathan Davidowicz, email dated February 4, 2021 regarding George Massey 
 Crossing Task Force and email dated February 6, 2021 regarding Transit System 
 Redesign (BC Transit and TransLink) Watch the Two Videos (On-Demand Transit) 
8.24 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letters dated February 5, 2021 to 
 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Board of Directors, Metro Vancouver and Jack Froese, Chair, 
 Zero Waste Committee, Metro Vancouver regarding Single-Use Item Reduction 
 Advocacy for Consistent Regional Regulation (full report available at the Village 
 office)  
8.25 Roger Hanna, email dated February 5, 2021 regarding 2020 Fouling of Waters Off 
 of Barnet Marine Park and Rocky Point – Minister Response and Follow-up (full 
 report available at the Village office) 
8.26 Diane Langman, Chair, Regional District of Kootenay Boundary, letter dated 
 February 4, 2021 to Honourable John Horgan, Premier, Honourable Selina 
 Robinson, Minister of Finance, Honourable Adrian Dix, Minister of Health, and 
 Honourable Katrine Conroy, MLA Kootenay West, regarding Letter of Support for 
 the Corporation of the City of Vernon   
8.27 Robert Simons, President, Port Moody Foundation, email dated February 10, 2021 
 regarding Call for Applications: Healthy Communities Initiative – Apply Starting 
 February 9, 2021 
8.28 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated February 12, 2021 
 regarding Additional Policy Review Summaries – Update to Metro 2040, the 
 Regional Growth Strategy (full report available at the Village office) 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  February 22, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\2.1 2021 02 22 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.29 Cathy Peters, BC Anti-Human Trafficking Educator, Speaker & Advocate, letter 
 dated February 16, 2021 regarding Raising Awareness regarding Human Sex 
 Trafficking, Sexual Exploitation & Child Sex Trafficking in British Columbia (full 
 report available at the Village office) 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 
That the February 22, 2021 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the 
Community Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to 
the public if the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of 
the following: 

(b) personal information about an identifiable individual who is being 
considered for a municipal award or honour, or who has offered to 
provide a gift to the municipality on condition of anonymity; 

 (i) the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including  
communications necessary for that purpose.   

(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision 
of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in 
the view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm the 
interests of the municipality if they were held in public.” 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the February 22, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\3.1 2021 02 08 Oath of Office Ceremony 
Inaugural Minutes.docx 

          
 
 
Council in Attendance 
Deputy Mayor Liisa Wilder  
Mayor Elect Jamie Ross 
Councillor Elect John Snell 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

Others in Attendance 
Honourable Judge Diana Dorey 
Constable Doug Burton, RCMP 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Deputy Mayor Liisa Wilder called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm. 
 
2. OATHS OF OFFICE 
 The Honourable Judge Diana Dorey administered the Oath of Office to  

Mayor Jamie Ross and Councillor John Snell. 
 

3. OATH OF OFFICE – MAYORS’ COUNCIL ON REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
 The Honourable Judge Diana Dorey administered the Oath of Office to Mayor Ross 
 for the Mayors’ Council on Regional Transportation  
 
4. RECESS 
 The Inaugural Council meeting recessed at 5:48 pm and reconvened on Zoom at 
 7:00 pm.   
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
INAUGURAL COUNCIL MINUTES 

Oath of Office  
VILLAGE HALL Parking Lot 

February 8, 2021 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



          
 
 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was be recorded.  

 
 

Daphne Douglas performed O’Canada  

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, called the meeting to order and the 
 Inaugural meeting reconvened at 7:00 pm.   
 It was noted that the Oaths of Office video will be posted on the website. 

2. INVOCATION 
 The Invocation Prayer was provided by Reverend Jennifer Swanson. 

3. BLESSING 
 The Tsleil-Waututh Nation Blessing of Council was provided by                         

Elder Carlene Thomas. 

4. INAUGURAL ADDRESS 
The Inaugural Address was presented by Mayor Jamie Ross. 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
INAUGURAL COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
February 8, 2021 



Inaugural Council Minutes  February 8, 2021  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\3.1 2021 02 08 Inaugural Minutes.docx 
Page 2 of 4 

 

5. GENERAL APPOINTMENTS 
5.1 Deputy Mayor Appointments 2021 
 Moved by:   Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the Councillors be appointed as Deputy Mayors for 2021 as follows: 
          October 2020 up to and including February 2021 – Councillor Liisa Wilder 
          March up to and including May 2021 – Councillor Carolina Clark 
          June up to and including August 2021 – Councillor Bruce Drake 
          September up to and including November 2021 – Councillor John Snell 

 CARRIED 
5.2 Appointment of Municipal Director to Metro Vancouver Regional District 

Board 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

That Council appoint Mayor Ross as Municipal Director to the Metro Vancouver 
Regional District Board of Directors; and 
That one (1) vote be distributed to the appointed Municipal Director; and  
That Councillor Clark be appointed as Alternate Municipal Director to take the 
place of an absent Municipal Director to the Metro Vancouver Regional District 
Board of Directors.  
    CARRIED 
 

5.3 Appointment to TransLink Mayors’ Council 
 Moved by:   Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That Council support the participation of Mayor Ross on the TransLink Mayors’ 

Council. 
CARRIED 

 
5.4 Appointment of Trustees to Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department  

(SVFD) Board 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That Council appoint Mayor Ross, Councillor Drake and Councillor Wilder as the 
Village of Belcarra three (3) Trustees to the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department 
(SVFD) Board. 

CARRIED 
5.5  Appointment of Coquitlam Search & Rescue (SAR) Council Liaison  
 Moved by:   Councillor Snell 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That Council appoint Councillor Clark as Council Liaison to Coquitlam Search 

and Rescue. 
CARRIED 



Inaugural Council Minutes  February 8, 2021  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\3.1 2021 02 08 Inaugural Minutes.docx 
Page 3 of 4 

 

5.6 Appointment of a Representative to the Tri-Cities Food Council  
 Moved by:   Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 

That Council appoint Councillor Clark as Council Representative to the Tri-Cities 
Food Council. 

CARRIED 
 
5.7 Appointment of a Representative to the School District 43, Board of 

Education, Child Care Task Force 
 Moved by:   Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That Council appoint Councillor Clark as the elected representative on the 

School District 43, Board of Education, Child Care Task Force. 
CARRIED 

5.8 Council Committee Appointments 
 Moved by:   Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

That the appointment of members to the following Committees be extended to 
April 30, 2021: 

• Water Committee; 
• Revenue Generation Committee;  
• Tree Committee; and 
• Farrer Cove Committee 

 Amendment: 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

That each committee be consulted prior to this date to discuss their 
recommendations to Council for the future role of the committee. 

CARRIED 
The main motion as amended: 
That the appointment of members to the following Committees be extended to 
April 30, 2021: 

• Water Committee; 
• Revenue Generation Committee;  
• Tree Committee; and 
• Farrer Cove Committee; and 

That each committee be consulted prior to this date to discuss their 
recommendations to Council for the future role of the committee. 

 The main motion as amended was voted on and 
 CARRIED 

 



Inaugural Council Minutes  February 8, 2021  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\3.1 2021 02 08 Inaugural Minutes.docx 
Page 4 of 4 

 

6. COUNCIL MEETING CALENDAR 2021 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 

That due to COVID-19 restrictions, Volunteer Appreciation and Belcarra Day be 
cancelled for 2021; and 
That the 2021 Council Meeting Calendar as presented by the Chief Administrative 
Officer be approved. 

CARRIED 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 Moved by:   Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
  
 That the Inaugural Meeting of February 8, 2021 be adjourned at 7:44 pm. 

    
    CARRIED 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: February 22, 2021  
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Changes in Internal Cost Allocations    
                      
 
Recommendation 
That Corporate Policy No. 217, titled “Internal Cost Allocations”, be approved.  

 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to address an identified audit/accounting issue related to the allocation of general 
operating fund costs. The Village auditors have noted the issue of cost allocation as an outstanding item as it relates to 
the Village of Belcarra’s major road network (MRN) and public works costs; however, the issue applies more broadly 
in that it involves the allocation of general operating fund costs to the Village MRN and to the water and Waste & 
Recycle Depot (WARD) operating funds. To address this issue fully and to ensure uniformity of treatment, cost 
allocations of all general operating fund costs, to these three areas, are addressed in this report.   

A rationalized methodology for allocating general fund operating costs to the MRN, the water operating fund, and the 
WARD operating fund is presented in this report together with the associated financial impacts of implementing the 
methodology. A policy which formalizes the Village approach to allocating general operating fund costs, based on the 
methodology, has been drafted for Council consideration.   

Background: 
Overview 
The following audit deficiency has been noted by our auditors (KPMG LLP) for a number of years:  
 

“OTHER CONTROL DEFICIENCIES IDENTIFIED IN PREVIOUS YEARS   

1. Allocation of public work costs for the Major Road Network (“MRN”) grant 

We noted that management’s allocation of public work costs, such as salaries & benefits, related to the MRN 
grant lacks proper documentation. There is no support readily available for the determination of the allocation, 
and the allocation has not been recently reviewed to ensure any changes that may have occurred since the 
original allocation was determined are reflected. As a result, allocated costs towards the MRN grant may not be 
reflective of actual costs.  

Recommendation: We recommend that management develop a formal policy to allocate costs and to determine 
a process to validate that the allocation is reasonable on an annual basis.  

Management response: In 2018, management agreed with the recommendation to develop a formal policy to 
support the allocation. In the current year, management indicated that it is still in the process of developing a 
system to address the above issue.”  

 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



 
 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 Council Report: Changes in Internal Cost Allocations   
 February 22, 2021                     
 Page 2 of 8 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.2 2021 02 22 Internal Cost Allocations.docx 

As noted above, this issue goes beyond just public works costs and applies to the allocation of all general operating 
expenditures which support or provide service to the Village MRN and its water and WARD operations. A formalized 
methodology is needed to ensure these three areas pay a justifiable dollar amount for this support and service, which in 
turn determines grant funding levels for the MRN and user fee levels for both water and WARD. Without a reasonable 
cost allocation these areas are not paying their fair share of costs.  
 

Methodology 
To determine a fair allocation of general operating fund costs to the MRN, water operations and WARD operations, the 
various general operating fund costs were examined. The public works non-management staff costs were determined to 
be direct costs that should be apportioned or costed out directly, according to an estimate of time spent by public works 
staff in the various operating areas, as follows:  

 
Allocation of Direct Public Works Staff Costs  

Operating Area Average % of Time Spent in Operating Areas 

General Operations 43.8% 

MRN Operations 25.0% 

Water Operations 28.1% 

WARD Operations 3.1% 

Total 100.0% 

 

Other general operating fund costs, which support the MRN, water and sewer, were determined to be indirect costs 
that needed to be costed out according to a reasonable formula. The best formula for this allocation was determined to 
be the budgeted dollar value of operating costs in each area in the preceding year (includes the allocation of direct 
public works labour costs) divided by the total budgeted operating expenditures for all funds / areas in the same year. 
One-time or non-reoccurring budgets and amortization cost budgets are excluded from this calculation as these items 
are not regular ongoing operating expenses and they would result in major fluctuations from one year to another. 
Based on 2020 budget numbers, the allocations for 2021 work out to the following: 

  
Allocation of Indirect General Operating Costs 

Operating Areas 2020 Budget 2021 % Allocations Based on 
Budgeted Expenditures in 2020 

General Operations $1,190,128  74.55% 

MRN Operations $77,551  4.86% 

Water Operations $218,884  13.71% 

WARD Operations $109,862  6.88% 

Total $1,596,425  100.00% 

 
 

 



 
 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 Council Report: Changes in Internal Cost Allocations   
 February 22, 2021                     
 Page 3 of 8 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.2 2021 02 22 Internal Cost Allocations.docx 

Financial Impacts 
The estimated financial impacts in 2021 of changing costs allocations on the basis of the above methodology is 
provided in Appendix “A”. Three scenarios have been provided in Appendix “A”, those being: 

• Scenario “A” – impact of moving to full 100% implementation (for non-direct costs) of the new 
methodology at one time (2021) with no phase-in.  

• Scenario “B” – impact of moving to partial 75% implementation (for non-direct costs) of the new 
methodology in the first year (2021). 

• Scenario “C” – impact of moving to partial 50% implementation (for non-direct costs) of the new 
methodology in the first year (2021). 

This methodology basically represents a fairer allocation of costs which results in a shift of costs from general 
operations to the MRN, and to water and WARD operations. The MRN is funded by a TransLink grant and as at 
the end of 2019 the Village had $122,000 of deferred grant revenue which is to be used for future MRN 
operating and maintenance costs. The Village was receiving approximate $110,000 annually for this purpose; 
however, because of the impact of COVID on TransLink revenue this grant was curtailed in 2020 to $16,250. 
We expect the previous funding levels to be restored in the near future.  

The impacts on water and WARD would mean an increase in the respective user rates which would be offset by 
property tax savings in the general fund. The impacts on user rates are shown in Appendix “A”. The various 
scenarios and the estimated financial impacts are summarized as follows: 

Fund/Area 2020 
Budgeted 

Cost 
Allocations 

Scenario "A" – 
Allocation of Direct 

Costs & 100% of New 
Allocations for Non-

Direct Costs 
 

Scenario "B" – 
Allocation of Direct 
Costs & 75% of New 
Allocations for Non-

Direct Costs 

Scenario "C" – 
Allocation of Direct 
Costs & 50% of New 
Allocations for Non-

Direct Costs 

  $’s 
Allocated 

$ & % Rate 
Changes 

$’s 
Allocated 

$ & % Rate 
Changes 

$’s 
Allocated 

$ & % Rate 
Change 

General 
Operating 
Fund 

 
($166,661) 

 

 
($338,384) 

 

 
($171,723) 

-20% 

 
($280,927) 

 

 
($114,266) 

-13% 

 
($223,471) 

 

 
($56,810) 

-7% 

MRN $43,578  $92,179  $48,601 
No Rates  

$81,207  $37,629 
No Rates  

$70,235  $26,657 
No Rates  

Water $95,652  $178,086  $82,434 
+30% 

$147,134  $51,482 
+19% 

$116,182 $20,530 
+8% 

WARD $27,431  $68,119  $40,688 
+34% 

$52,586  $25,155 
+21% 

$37,054  
 

$9,623 
+8% 

$ Totals $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Based on the methodology outlined in this report, an internal cost allocation policy has been drafted (see attached 
Appendix “B”) which includes a phased-in approach to allocating non-direct costs, with a 50% allocation of non-
direct costs in 2021, 75% in 2022 and 100% in 2023. This phased-in approach will allow for a gradual increase in 
user rates in the water and WARD operating funds.  The full impact of this methodology will only be realized in 
the future years based on the new indirect cost allocations; therefore, the policy includes provision for an annual 
review of the budget/cost impacts. The direct public works labour cost allocations would not be phased-in. 



 
 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 Council Report: Changes in Internal Cost Allocations   
 February 22, 2021                     
 Page 4 of 8 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.2 2021 02 22 Internal Cost Allocations.docx 

 



 

 
 

 

             
 

 
        Title: Internal Cost Allocations 
 

ISSUED BY:  CAO APPROVED BY:  COUNCIL  DATE:    

REVISED BY:  APPROVED BY:  DATE:    
 

1. PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND 
 
        The Village of Belcarra has three distinct operating funds (General, Water and Waste & Recycle 

Depot) and one distinct operational area (the Major Road Network), which have dedicated funding 
and which operate as self-sustaining funds or enterprises.  

 
The Village general operating expenditures are provided for in the General Operating Fund and are 
predominately funded from property taxes, whereas Water Operating Fund and Waste & Recycle 
Depot (WARD) operations/expenditures are each funded primarily from user fees. The Major Road 
Network (MRN) is funded by dedicated TransLink grants.  
 
It is important that each of these cost areas (General, Water, WARD & MRN) fairly account for 
their respective costs so that funding (property taxes, user fees and grants) may be established at a 
level that sustains their respective operations and that one fund or area is not subsidizing another 
fund / area.   
 
Expenditures within General Operating Fund, which support the Water Operating Fund, the WARD 
Operating Fund and the MRN, need to be fairly allocated to the other funds/areas to ensure equity 
and appropriately established funding levels. The General Operating Fund expenditures need to be 
allocated in a rationale and justifiable manner to all funds/areas. The allocations need to be 
reflective of the level of support provided by General Operations to the Water, WARD and MRN 
cost areas.   
 
2. POLICY   

 
Overview 
 
Direct costs and indirect costs in the General Operating Fund provide support to the other three 
operating areas. Direct costs are expenses that directly go into providing services and that can be 
directly attributable, based on consumption, to each area. Indirect costs are general business 
expenses which support all of the funds / areas operating and which are not easily attributable; in 
terms of consumption, to a specific area.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 

CORPORATE POLICY NO. 217 



Corporate Policy No. 217 - Internal Cost Allocations 

 

 
Direct Costs 
 
Public Works staff costs (does not include Public Works management) are direct costs within the 
General Operating Fund which can be allocated appropriately to each fund / area. A reasonable 
means of allocating direct Public Works staff costs is an approximation of time spent in each area 
which has been determined as follows: 

 
Allocation of Direct Public Works Labour Costs  

Operating Area Average % of Time Spent in Operating Areas 

General Operations 43.8% 

MRN Operations 25.0% 

Water Operations 28.1% 

WARD Operations 3.1% 

Total 100.0% 

 
The above percentages will be used for allocating direct Public Works labour costs. These 
percentages will be reviewed annually and adjusted accordingly.  
   

        Indirect Costs 
 

The other costs in the General Operating Fund, which provide support to all areas, are deemed to 
be indirect costs, these costs may be reasonably apportioned according to the size of the respective 
operating expenditure budgets (after allocation of direct Public Works labour costs) in each area.  
 
General Operating Fund costs which support all areas will be apportioned to General Operations, 
MRN, Water and WARD according to the budgeted dollar value of operating costs in each area in 
the preceding year divided by the total budgeted operating expenditures for all funds / areas in the 
same year. One-time or non-reoccurring budgets and amortization cost budgets will be excluded 
from this calculation as these items are not considered regular ongoing operating expenses and they 
would result in major fluctuations from one year to another. Based on the 2020 budget, the sharing 
percentages are presently as follows: 
 

Allocation of Indirect General Operating Fund Costs 

Operating Areas % Allocations Based on 
Budgeted Expenditures 

General Operations 74.55% 

MRN Operations 4.86% 

Water Operations 13.71% 

WARD Operations 6.88% 

Total 100.00% 

 
The above estimated apportionments will be adjusted and costed on the basis of the new budgets 
as determined on an ongoing basis.  

 
 



Corporate Policy No. 217 - Internal Cost Allocations 

 

 
Transition 

 
The method outlined in this Policy of charging the respective funds / areas fairly for the amount 
of resources or services provided results in a shift in property tax, user fee and grant levels. To 
provide for a gradual shift a phase-in of this Policy is being implemented for non-direct costs 
with a 50% allocation of non-direct costs in 2021, 75% in 2022 and 100% in 2023. This phased-
in approach will allow for a more gradual increase in user rates in the water and WARD 
operating funds.  As the full impact of the methodology outlined herein will only be realized in 
future years based on the new indirect cost allocations, this Policy will be reviewed annually to 
determine the budget / cost impacts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.3 2021 02 22 Council Indemnity Report.docx 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: February 22, 2021   
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant 

  
Subject: Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 
 

 
Recommendation: 
That the Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 be read a first and second time. 

Purpose: 
This report introduces the Council indemnity increase for 2021 as per the previously adopted Council 
motion (see below).  
 
Background: 
On February 3, 2020, Council passed the following motion: 

     “That Council indemnity increases be calculated on the basis of the Vancouver Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) increase for the preceding 12 month period ending October 31 of each year, prior to the calendar 
year in which any increases would take effect.”  

The 12 month Vancouver CPI increase for the period ending October 31, 2020 is 0.8%. Bylaws cannot be 
applied retroactively and the purpose of basing the Council indemnity increase on the 12 month period 
ending October 31 in each year was to ensure that the new indemnity rates were in effect at the start of 
every year; however, as there has not been a full Council the increases are being brought forward at this 
time. The 0.8% equates to the following 2021 indemnity increases for Council: 

  Annual 2020 
Council  

Indemnities 

Annual 2021 
Council  

Indemnities $ Change % Change 

Mayor  
 

$22,057.04 
 

 
$22,233.50 

 
$176.46 0.8% 

Councillors  
 

$11,028.52 
 

 
$11,116.75 

 
$88.23 0.8% 

 

 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



 
Lorna Dysart Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Council Indemnity Increase 
February 22, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.3 2021 02 22 Council Indemnity Report.docx 
 
 

It is recommended that Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 receive first three 
readings. The actual rates in the bylaw reflect the April 1st, 2021 date at which the bylaw will be in effect 
as the bylaw cannot be applied retroactively. The bylaw rates also ensure that the 0.8% increase is 
received for the entire year.  



 

       
 

 
A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  

Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors 
 
WHEREAS the Municipal Council may, by bylaw, provide for the payment from annual 
general revenue, an indemnity to the Mayor and to each Councillor for the discharge of 
their duties of office;  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Village of Belcarra in open meeting 
assembled enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Council 
Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021". 

2. The indemnity for the Mayor from April 1, 2021, up to and including        
December 31, 2021, shall be the gross sum of $1,857.69 monthly.  

3. The indemnity for each Councillor from April 1, 2021, up to and including 
December 31, 2021, shall be the gross sum of $928.85 monthly.  

4. The indemnities provided for in Section 2 and 3 above shall be paid by the Chief 
Administrative Officer, save and except for the provisions of Section 5 hereof. 

5. In the event of any member of Council being absent from three consecutive 
regular Council meetings, the indemnity that would otherwise be due to that 
member shall not be paid to that member.  This provision may be waived by a 
unanimous vote in favour thereof by the remaining members of Council. 

6. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

7. This bylaw shall take force and come into effect as of April 1, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Council Indemnity  

Bylaw No. 579, 2021 



Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.1 Bylaw 579, 2021 Council 
Indemnity Bylaw.docx 
 

2 
 

8. The “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 544, 2020” is hereby 
repealed. 

  
 
READ A FIRST TIME on  
 
READ A SECOND TIME on  
 
READ A THIRD TIME on  
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
 
   
Jamie Ross  
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 File:  4200-01 
Date: February 22, 2021  
 
From: Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer 
 
Subject: 2021 By-Election Final Report 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the report dated February 22, 2021 regarding 2021 By-Election Final Report be received for 
information. 
 
Purpose 
 
This report is to comply with the requirements of section 158 of the Local Government Act, 
R.S.B.C. 2015, c. 1, as amended, which states that the Chief Election Office must submit a report 
of the election results within 30 days after the declaration of official election results.  The Chief 
Election Officer made the declaration of official election results on January 25, 2021.  Copies of 
the requisite declarations are attached to this report.  
 
Background 
 
Ministerial Order 
 
The Village of Belcarra held a By-Election for the position of Mayor and for one position of 
Councillor pursuant to the Ministerial Order No. M429-2020.  In order to administer the          
By-Election during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministerial Order enabled the Village to do the 
following: 

• Hold the by-election on January 23, 2021;  
• Extend the right to vote by mail ballot to all eligible voters;  
• Reduce the number of scrutineers to one scrutineer per ballot box in use; and 
• Accept oral declarations in place of signing the voters’ book.  

 
Council passed a resolution on December 7, 2020, to adopt the contents of the Ministerial Order 
and to provide for additional advertising of the By-Election through the use of postings at the 
Village bus stops, the Village master email list, and the Village website. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer 
Council Report: By-Election Final Report 
February 22, 2021 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.4 2021 02 22 By-Election Final Report.docx 

COVID Safety Plan 
 
The By-Election was conducted in accordance with the Village COVID safety plan.  As noted 
above, the mail ballot voting opportunity was expanded to include all eligible voters1.  Village 
staff were able to secure plexiglass dividers from Elections BC for use during the election.  Prior 
to the advance voting opportunity, the Village Hall was sprayed (fogged) with an advanced 
cleaning product, donated by a resident. All By-Election furniture and equipment was set up to 
provide maximum safety for the voters.   
 
Prior to entering the polling station, all people entering the polling station underwent a health 
check.  If a voter answered yes to any of the questions asked during the health check, that voter 
was not permitted to enter the polling station; however, the voter in question was able to cast 
their vote using the curbside voting process. Only one person at advance voting and four people 
on general voting day needed to use the curbside voting process. 
 
All voters were required to wear a mask prior to entering the polling station.  Upon entering the 
polling station, voters had to sanitize their hands prior to heading to a voter’s table.  The election 
official would administer the oath to the voter, mark in the book that the voter had taken the oath 
and provide the voter with a pencil (using the tongs) and the ballot.  The voter would proceed to 
the ballot box to mark the ballot.  The voter would then drop the ballot in the ballot box, drop the 
used pencil in the bin, sanitize their hands again, and then leave through another door, to ensure a 
“one-way” navigation through the polling station, thereby minimizing contact between the 
voters.  
 
Only two voters were permitted to be in the polling station at any one time.  In spite of the 
limited number of voters within the polling station, all voters were able to be processed and 
record their vote in a reasonable period of time. The longest line-up at any one time was four 
voters waiting outside. 
 
All voters were co-operative with adhering to the COVID safety plan.  
 
Number of Candidates Per Position 
 
There was one candidate for the position of Councillor and two candidates for the position of 
Mayor at the close of the nomination period on December 18, 2020.  On December 28, 2020, the 
Chief Election Officer made the declaration of election by acclamation for the position of 
Councillor, naming John Snell the successful candidate. The declaration of election by voting for 
the position of the Mayor, was made naming Colm Cole and Jamie Ross as the candidates. 
 
Mail Ballot Voting 
 
Voters were able to make an application to vote by mail ballot, as soon as the Ministerial Order 
was given.  If the voter request had been received prior to January 11, the voter may have the 

 
1  The legislation as it is currently written permits mail ballot voting only for those who have issues attending the 
polling station, such as physical challenges or illness, or those who will be outside of the jurisdiction on general 
voting day.  



Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer 
Council Report: By-Election Final Report 
February 22, 2021 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.4 2021 02 22 By-Election Final Report.docx 

ballot package mailed to them.  After January 11, the voter would only be able to pick up the 
ballot package at the Village office in order to ensure that the voter would receive the ballot and 
return it by 8:00 pm on General Voting Day. All mail ballots were administered by the Deputy 
Chief Election Officers (DCEO). Preparing the mail ballot envelopes was a significant job that 
included all office staff. 
 
Once a voter applied for a mail ballot, the voter would have to return their mail ballot either by 
mail or by dropping it at the Village office prior to January 23, 2021 or by dropping it at the 
polling station on General Voting Day.  The voter would not be issued another ballot if the voter 
attended the polling station at the Advance Voting or on General Voting Day and wanted to vote 
in-person instead. The process for managing and ensuring the safety and secrecy was time 
consuming and important for office staff and DCEO. 
 
On January 22, 2021 at 10:00 am, in front two scrutineers, the election officials opened the return 
envelopes and reviewed the certification envelopes to determine if the ballot would be accepted.  
If the certification envelope was accepted, the Chief Election Officer would open the certification 
envelope and place the secrecy envelope containing the ballot within the ballot box.  If the 
certification envelope was not accepted, the Chief Election Officer would state the reason why the 
certification envelope was not accepted and noted the reason on the certification envelope.  The 
rejected certification envelope would not be opened, and its contents were not placed in the ballot 
box.  All return envelopes received after 10:00 am on Friday, January 22, 2021 were kept to the 
side until 8 pm on General Voting Day.  At that time, those return envelopes were processed in 
the same manner.  Once all of the secrecy envelopes were placed in the ballot box, the election 
officials shook the ballot box to mix up the votes and then proceeded to open the secrecy 
envelopes in order to count the ballots. Arrangements were made for a scrutineer for each 
candidate to be present for the opening of the mail ballot envelopes. 
 
Number of Voters Participating  
 
At the start of the By-Election, there were 523 voters who were registered in advance of the vote.  
(They were registered on the Provincial voters’ list which was adopted pursuant to the Village 
election by-law.)  There were also 5 non-resident property owners who had previously registered 
with the Village to vote.  (Their registration in previous local government elections forms part of 
the current voters list.) 
 
Attachment No. 1 contains a table to show the number of voters who cast their ballots at the 
different voting opportunities.  
 
Suggested Changes for Next Election: 
 
The following points are suggestions to facilitate the conduct of the next Local Government 
Election, which will be in 2022 for the positions of Mayor, Councillors, and School Trustee.  
The Chief Election Officer recommends the following: 

1. Holding a candidates meeting to outline expectations and responsibilities during the 
course of the election. 

 



Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer 
Council Report: By-Election Final Report 
February 22, 2021 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.4 2021 02 22 By-Election Final Report.docx 

A meeting of the candidates should be held after the expiry of the withdrawal period (7 days 
after the close of the nomination period).  At this meeting, the Chief Election Officer would 
review key dates that occur during the election, outline the responsibilities of the candidates 
before and after the election, and answer any questions that the candidates may have. This 
meeting will ensure that candidates are well aware of their obligations in the election. The Chief 
Administrative Officer met with one candidate for Mayor and the candidate for Councillor. 
 

2. Require a deposit for release of the voters’ list to the candidates with the return of the 
deposit to the candidates following the return of the voters’ list. 

 
At this point, candidates only sign a statement that they are receiving a paper copy of the voters’ 
list.  Election officials verbally informed the candidates that the candidates are to return the 
original voters’ list and any copies that they may have made to the Village office as soon as 
possible after the election.  The requirement to return the voters’ list is to protect the privacy of 
the persons names on the voters’ list, by destroying the documentation in accordance with the 
legislation and ensuring that there are no voters’ list “floating around” the community. 
 
To ensure that voters’ lists are returned by the candidates in a timely fashion, the candidates 
would have to provide a deposit which would be returned to the candidate upon the return of the 
voters’ list.    
 

3. Limit postings by the candidates on the Village website to only an introduction of the 
candidates within a specific word limit, a photograph if desired, and contact information 
to direct the voters to the candidate’s own website.  

 
Recognizing that the COVID pandemic had a significant impact on the ability of candidates to 
campaign in a traditional manner, Council granted the candidates the ability to post messages to 
the Village website.  Candidates did provide an introduction for themselves at the start of the By-
Election.  However, the candidates also posted position papers and responses to comments raised 
by the other candidates.  Some of these comments did not accurately reflect what had occurred in 
certain situations.  The initial language on the website stated at the top of candidate bulletin 
board did indicate that that Village was providing this service as a convenience to the candidates.  
However, because of the nature of comments being made, staff, based on legal advice received, 
strengthened that language to emphasize that the comments expressed were not to be construed 
as the official position of the Village and that all questions regarding operations should be 
directed to staff. The website is managed by Village staff and the management of the website 
took a considerable amount of time. 
 
If the Village considers providing this type of accessibility of its website to the candidates, the 
Village should take the following concerns into consideration.  First, the posting of candidate 
information beyond a simple introduction could be construed as endorsements of the candidates 
by the Village, in particular, if one candidate has their documents posted earlier before the other 
candidates.  More importantly, postings of this nature increase the likelihood of the Village being 
considered as a third party advertiser under the Local Election Campaign Financing Act and 
therefore subject to all of the requirements of that Act.  Depending on the nature of the 
comments made by the candidates, it could place the Village in the very awkward situation of 



Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer 
Council Report: By-Election Final Report 
February 22, 2021 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.4 2021 02 22 By-Election Final Report.docx 

appearing to support the candidate comments which are definitely not the official position of the 
Village in certain situations. 
 
The suggestion to place very strict parameters as to what the candidates may post or not post on 
the Village website would go far to address these concerns. Candidates should be directing 
voters to their own webpages where they can control the content of what they wish the voters to 
know about them and their platform.   
 

4. Amend the election bylaw to have only 1 scrutineer per candidate, rather than the current 
number of 2 scrutineers per candidate per box.  

 
One of the observations about the space used for the polling station is that it can be rather 
limiting depending upon the number of people in the polling station.  First priority should be to 
having the sufficient number of election officials and providing them with adequate space in 
which to serve the voters.  During this By-Election, the typical set up of the polling station was 
significantly modified in order to adhere to proper social distancing within the polling station.  
Fortunately, there were only two scrutineers at any one time, so the election officials were able to 
accommodate the scrutineers as well as the voters.  This is because there were only two 
candidates.  Any more candidates would have meant more scrutineers in the polling station.  
Likely, the number of voter tables would have been reduced to one table which would have a 
significant impact on the number of voters who may be processed at any one time.   
 
While there is optimism that the COVID pandemic will be under control by the next election, 
there is no guarantee that the health orders will be removed, and that the Village may conduct the 
election in the usual fashion.  Given the size of the Village Hall, which is the only place within 
the jurisdiction that may function as the polling station, thought should be given, in advance, to 
determine the polling station set up.  Given that the next election will be a general election in 
which the position of Mayor, all of the positions on Council and one position for School Trustee 
may be subject to election by voting, there could be a high number of scrutineers to be 
accommodated.  The current provision in the bylaw of two scrutineers per ballot box would not 
provide much space in the polling station for more than one voter table in operation.  Reducing 
the number of scrutineers per candidate in the polling station to one will still enable the 
candidates to know what is taking place during the election while providing the polling station 
with adequate space to accommodate more voters. 
 
Observations: 
 
The Chief Election Officer would like to comment on the conduct of the Village staff during 
their involvement in this By-Election.   Ms. Richardson and Ms. Esposito served as Deputy Chief 
Election Officers, Ms. Labonte was an election official at the Advance Vote and on General 
Voting Day. The Chief Administrative Officer was in attendance and assisted as an election 
official. The CAO oversaw and managed all the work in the office throughout the By-Election 
and was the day to day liaison with Municipal Affairs and Lidstone & Company regarding legal 
advice.  All staff members should be commended for the high degree of professionalism and 
integrity they displayed throughout the entire election process.  It was a privilege to work with 
staff during what may be a very stressful and challenging time period.  



Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer 
Council Report: By-Election Final Report 
February 22, 2021 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.4 2021 02 22 By-Election Final Report.docx 

 
The Chief Election Officer would also like to recognize Andrew Carricato from Lidstone & 
Company, for the legal support that was provided throughout the election.  
 
Attachments: 

1) Number of Electors by Voting Opportunity Table 
2) Declaration of Election by Acclamation for position of Councillor 
3) Determination of Official Results for position of Mayor  

 
  



Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer 
Council Report: By-Election Final Report 
February 22, 2021 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\5.4 2021 02 22 By-Election Final Report.docx 

 
Attachment No. 1  

 
2021 By-Election 

Number of Electors by Voting Opportunity (434 voters in total) 
 

Type of Electors Mail Ballots 
This lists the total 

number of those who 
chose this option, 

whether they returned 
their ballots or not 

Advance Vote – 
January 13, 2021 

General Voting – 
January 23, 2021 

Resident – Registered 79 132 175 
Resident – New 
Applicants 

6 4 27 

    
Non-Resident 
Property Owners – 
Registered 

3 0  

Non-Resident 
Property Owners – 
New Applicants  

3 0 4 

    
Others – Freedom of 
the Municipality 

1 0 0 

    
Total voters of the 
overall 434 voters by 
category 

92 136 206 
 

Notes The total includes the 
5 mail ballots which 
were not returned by 

the deadline 

1 person used 
curbside voting  

5 people use curbside 
voting 

 
Total number of new applicants who applied as Resident Electors was 37.   
Total number of new applicants who applied as Non Resident Property Electors was 7.   
 
Percentage of eligible voters who participated in comparison to known voters at the start of the 
By-Election is 82%.  (This percentage does not account for the 44 new voters.) 
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Lorna Dysart Date: January 27, 2021 

Client: Village of Belcarra Project: Belcarra 

From: Pooni Group Project #: 1840 

Re: Belcarra Year in Review 2020-2021 

 
The following memorandum summarizes the planning-related works that were undertaken or initiated in 2020 
by Pooni Group and/or RWPAS Ltd for the Village of Belcarra.  
 
Council Related Items 
1. Amendment to Building & Plumbing Bylaw 

• Response to a motion by Council.  
• Amendment to Building & Plumbing Code Bylaw to eliminate the requirement for a property 

undergoing a major renovation to connect to the Village’s water system. 

Date to Council: January 13, 2020 

Result: Village of Belcarra Building and Plumbing Code Regulation Bylaw No. 355, 2003, Amendment Bylaw  
No. 543, 2020 was adopted on January 27, 2020. 

Link: https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/09/Bylaw-355-Building-and-Plumbing-Regulation-
Consolidated.pdf 
 

2. Short Term Rental Policy 
• Policy on short term rentals & associated bylaw amendments 
• In 2019, Council directed staff to draft a Short-Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) policy for Council 

consideration. 
• Development of a STRA Policy that identifies how the Village will review Business Licence applications 

for STRAs and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation (B&B) home based businesses, and provides clarity for 
staff, Elected Officials, and property owners. 

• Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, and Business 
License Bylaw No. 277, 1995 to implement the Village’s Short-Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & 
Breakfast Accommodation Bylaw.  

Dates to Council: February 10, 2020 (STRA Policy), March 9, 2020 (Bylaw amendments) 
 

https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/09/Bylaw-355-Building-and-Plumbing-Regulation-Consolidated.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/09/Bylaw-355-Building-and-Plumbing-Regulation-Consolidated.pdf
prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5

prichardson
Typewritten Text



 

 

                                                                                    

 
2 

Result: After the February 10, 2020 Council meeting, Council direct staff to bring forward bylaw 
amendments. At the March 9, 2020 meeting, Council deferred the STRA policy and bylaw amendments and 
it has not been revisited.  Link: https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/04/2020-03-09-Signed-Regular-
Council-Meeting-Minutes.pdf 
 

3. Road Ends 
• Exploration of disposition process for road ends including surveys, appraisals, precedent research, etc., 

as an income generator for the Village 
• Revenue Generation Committee directed the development of a methodology for the disposition of the 

road ends  
• Identified 7 potential road ends for disposition (survey, appraisal, etc.) 
• Development of a Land Disposition Policy 
• July 24, 2020 discussions with Council (RWPAS) 

Date to Council: September 28, 2020 (Public Hearing & Council meeting) 

Result: Provincial legislation restricts the sale of municipal waterfront property unless the proceeds fund 
the creation of enhanced access to the same body of water. Disposition of these road ends was not 
pursued as the revenue could not be directed to capital priorities identified by Council. At the      
September 28, 2020 Council Meeting following the Public Hearing, Council elected not to pursue this 
work any further and the Bylaws were defeated. 
 

4. Special Event Policy  
• Development of a Special Event Policy, which allows Belcarra to regulate events such as a Tea Festival 

under a separate, more streamlined process. A Special Event Permit will allow for short, infrequent 
events (i.e. for 1 to 3 days only) which would not require a full staff report and vote by Council for each 
event.  

• Amend Fees & Charges Bylaw to increase the Special Event Permit fee & include maximum fine for 
violation.  

Date to Council: May 25, 2020 

Result: Council adopted Special Event Policy No. 212 & Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment 
Bylaw No. 563, 2020 was adopted on June 8, 2020.  

Link: https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-
Consolidated.pdf 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/04/2020-03-09-Signed-Regular-Council-Meeting-Minutes.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/04/2020-03-09-Signed-Regular-Council-Meeting-Minutes.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-Consolidated.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-Consolidated.pdf


 

 

                                                                                    

 
3 

5. Update to Pre-Application Fees 
• To update the Fees and Charges bylaw to include a fee for pre-application review for large rezoning 

applications.  
• In the event that the Village does receive larger, more complex applications, it is encouraged that a 

pre-application package be submitted to be reviewed by staff to allow them to provide the applicant 
with early direction.  

Date to Council: September 14, 2020 

Result: Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020 was 
adopted on October 26, 2020. 
Link: https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-
Consolidated.pdf 

 
6. Chickens Keeping 

• Development of a Chicken Keeping Policy to provide guidance regarding the keeping of chickens. 
• Amendment to the Zoning Bylaw to permit the keeping of backyard chickens.  
• Amendment to the Fees & Charges Bylaw to cover costs associated with the registration of keeping 

chickens and violation of the chicken keeping regulations. 

Dates to Council:  
• Report and first & second readings – September 14, 2020  
• Public Hearing – September 28, 2020 
• Third reading & adoption – September 28, 2020 
•  Policy approved – October 26, 2020 

Results: Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 was adopted on 
September 28, 2020. 
Link: https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-510-2018-Zoning-Bylaw-Consolidated-.pdf 

Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 was adopted on October 26, 2020 
Link: https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-
Consolidated.pdf 

Corporate Policy No. 215 “Chickens Keeping Policy” adopted on October 26, 2020 
Link: https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/2020-10-26-Regular-Council-Agenda-PACKAGE.pdf 
 

7. Sprinklers in New Builds or Major Renovations  
• Response to a motion by Council. 
• Amendment of the Fees & Charges Bylaw to remove fees associated with the inspection of sprinklers in 

new builds or major renovations. 
• Encourages owners to install the appropriate number of sprinklers in accordance with the BC Building 

Code.  

https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-Consolidated.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-Consolidated.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-510-2018-Zoning-Bylaw-Consolidated-.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-Consolidated.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/Bylaw-517-2018-Fees-and-Charges-Bylaw-Consolidated.pdf
https://belcarra.ca/assets/media/2020/10/2020-10-26-Regular-Council-Agenda-PACKAGE.pdf


 

 

                                                                                    

 
4 

• Inspections are still required to ensure the sprinkler system has been properly installed. 
• Building Permit Application fee applies. 

Date to Council: December 7, 2020 

Result: Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 576, 2020 
received first, second, and third readings. To be adopted at the first Council meeting in 2021.  
 

8. Wharfs/Highway Encroachment Agreement 
• Pooni Group assisted RWPAS Ltd.  and Port City Planning Ltd. (PCP) in preparing the Public Hearing 

advertisement related to the Wharf / Highway Encroachment Agreement.  
• RWPAS prepared an OCP Amendment to simplify the OCP relating to Bedwell Bay Planning. 
• PCP prepared updated Wharf and Highway encroachment administration documents and processes. 

• Village needs to lift moratorium on the construction of new docks along Marine Ave & Sinclair. 

Dates to Council:  
• Report on VFPA Grant – June 8, 2020 
• Report and first & second readings – July 20, 2020  
• Public Hearing – September 14, 2020  
• Third reading & adoption – September 14, 2020  

Result: Council amended the OCP to align with the new Wharf approval regulations from VFPA.   
 

9. Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) Tea House 
• In 2018, ELC initiated discussions with the Village regarding Rezoning. In response, Pooni Group 

prepared a Rezoning Checklist to help advance this work; however, it has not been pursued by ELC 
since that initial correspondence. 

• ELC is currently working through Building Code and Building Inspection requirements related to 
securing the TUP for their Tea house. This work is ongoing and is being managed by Richard White.  

• Council is considering issuing a TUP for the Tea House.  

Date to Council: Still Pending 21/01  
 
10. Housing Needs Assessment Grant Application 

• Village is required to produce a Housing Needs Report on a regular basis 
• UBCM provides funding to undertake this work 
• Working with Anmore & Lions Bay 

Date to Council: September 28, 2020 
 

Result: Council approved a grant application (which has now been awarded for $15,000.00) to 
prepare a Housing Needs Assessment 

 



 

 

                                                                                    

 
5 

11. Non-Council related items 
Farrer Cove Road/Farrer Cove Committee  
• Strategy discussions 
• Mapping of potential land swap options - Belcarra & Port Moody 
• Contact with Metro Parks Planning 

Property on Coombe Lane  
• Provided general guidance regarding the interpretation of the Zoning Bylaw in relation to the 

construction of a new accessory building on site. Paul Wiskar is currently managing this process. 
 

Residents on Bedwell Bay Road 
• In November 2020, correspondence was sent from the Village to the property owner regarding three 

separate rental suites on the property and their contravention with the Zoning Bylaw. Pooni Group 
assisted in drafting the correspondence. 

• The owner was requested to cease rental of one of the rental suites by 2021. However, the Village 
received correspondence from the owner indicating that they have been unable to return home from 
their year-long world travels due to COVID. The Village agreed to delay pursuing the matter until the 
owners are able to return home. The Chief Administrative Officer is currently managing this process 
and all correspondence with owners (July).   
 

12. General Planning  
• Monitor Council correspondence particularly related to Metro Vancouver and upcoming amendments 

to the Regional Growth Strategy. 
• Discussions with CAO and Mayor on a variety of general planning topics. 
• RWPAS assisted with preparations for full OCP review now on hold. 
• RWPAS assisted with Sprinkler related topics including initial contact with Ministry Officials.  



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\6.1 2020 02 22 Councillor 
Wilder - Notice of Motion - New Docks in Bedwell Bay.docx 

  
COUNCIL MEMBER REPORT 

    
Date: February 22, 2021   
 
From: Councillor Wilder  
 
Subject: Notice of Motion - New Docks in Bedwell Bay  
 
  
Notice of Motion  
That all new docks in Bedwell Bay be required to be group wharves with a minimum of 4 and 
maximum of 6 primary resident families; and 
That existing single / shared docks have the option to convert to a group wharf, with a minimum 
of 4 and maximum of 6 primary resident families 
 
Rationale 
Over the last several years, it has become clear that many more people in Belcarra wish to have a 
dock share than there are currently spaces available.  Issues which constrain participation in a 
dock society relate to the sensitive habitat of Bedwell Bay, guidelines set forth by the Vancouver 
Port Authority, the geography of the foreshore and our current zoning of Bedwell Bay.   
 
Some of the current zoning in Bedwell Bay is neither fair nor logical for establishing a proper 
process to accommodate as many residents as possible.  Docks along the foreshore of Bedwell 
Bay are on public land where the Village of Belcarra is to be the prime licensee with the 
Port.  Thus, given that the foreshore property really belongs to all of Belcarra, the VOB has a 
duty to facilitate participation in a dock society by as many residents as possible.  The proposed 
changes provide forward-looking guidance and a more logical and fair process.  For the 
single/shared wharf zone, this does not change the current owner's experience and does not affect 
incumbent owners. 
 
Having a dock is a privilege and, as the prime Licensee for docks in Bedwell Bay, the Village of 
Belcarra should be extending that privilege to as many residents of Belcarra as possible 
in Belcarra. 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.2





J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 02 22\7.1 Bylaw 576, 2020 Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 517 2018 Amendment Bylaw - sprinkler inspection fee (2).docx 

 
 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 576, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

a) By removing the following language from Schedule 2a – Building Permit and 
Inspection Services: 

Fire Sprinkler Heads – first 50 heads, per head 

• Minimum fee 
• each additional HEAD 

$4.00 
$68.00 
$4.00 

Building Permit Application Fee, includes 
Plumbing Permit (as per charges for fire 
sprinklers) 
 

$116.00/Construction over $5,000.00 
value 

If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on December 7, 2020 
 
Read a Second Time on December 7, 2020 
 
Read a Third Time on December 7, 2020 
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 

  
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  
Amendment Bylaw No. 576, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 576, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.16



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.17









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.18





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.19



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.20



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.21





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.22







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.23





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.24













prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.25





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.26





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.27



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.28







prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.29


	3.1 2021 02 08 Oath of Office Ceremoney & Inaugural Minutes.pdf
	Moved by:  Councillor Drake
	Seconded by: Councillor Clark
	CARRIED
	The main motion as amended:
	The main motion as amended was voted on and
	CARRIED
	That due to COVID-19 restrictions, Volunteer Appreciation and Belcarra Day be cancelled for 2021; and
	That the 2021 Council Meeting Calendar as presented by the Chief Administrative Officer be approved.
	CARRIED
	Certified Correct:

	5.2 2021 02 22 Internal Cost Allocations.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: February 22, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Changes in Internal Cost Allocations
	Recommendation
	That Corporate Policy No. 217, titled “Internal Cost Allocations”, be approved.
	Purpose:
	The purpose of this report is to address an identified audit/accounting issue related to the allocation of general operating fund costs. The Village auditors have noted the issue of cost allocation as an outstanding item as it relates to the Village o...
	A rationalized methodology for allocating general fund operating costs to the MRN, the water operating fund, and the WARD operating fund is presented in this report together with the associated financial impacts of implementing the methodology. A poli...
	Background:
	Title: Internal Cost Allocations
	1. PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
	2. POLICY

	5.3 2021 02 22 Council Indemnity Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: February 22, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	On February 3, 2020, Council passed the following motion:
	“That Council indemnity increases be calculated on the basis of the Vancouver Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the preceding 12 month period ending October 31 of each year, prior to the calendar year in which any increases would take effec...
	The 12 month Vancouver CPI increase for the period ending October 31, 2020 is 0.8%. Bylaws cannot be applied retroactively and the purpose of basing the Council indemnity increase on the 12 month period ending October 31 in each year was to ensure tha...
	It is recommended that Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 receive first three readings. The actual rates in the bylaw reflect the April 1st, 2021 date at which the bylaw will be in effect as the bylaw cannot be applied retroacti...
	5.3 Bylaw 579, 2021 Council Indemnity Bylaw.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021


	5.3 2021 02 22 Council Indemnity Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: February 22, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	On February 3, 2020, Council passed the following motion:
	“That Council indemnity increases be calculated on the basis of the Vancouver Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the preceding 12 month period ending October 31 of each year, prior to the calendar year in which any increases would take effec...
	The 12 month Vancouver CPI increase for the period ending October 31, 2020 is 0.8%. Bylaws cannot be applied retroactively and the purpose of basing the Council indemnity increase on the 12 month period ending October 31 in each year was to ensure tha...
	It is recommended that Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 receive first three readings. The actual rates in the bylaw reflect the April 1st, 2021 date at which the bylaw will be in effect as the bylaw cannot be applied retroacti...
	5.3 Bylaw 579, 2021 Council Indemnity Bylaw.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021


	5.4 2021 02 22 By-Election Final Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	File:  4200-01
	Date: February 22, 2021
	From: Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer
	Subject: 2021 By-Election Final Report

	6.1 2020 02 22 Councillor Wilder - Notice of Motion - New Docks in Bedwell Bay.pdf
	COUNCIL MEMBER REPORT
	Date: February 22, 2021
	From: Councillor Wilder
	Subject: Notice of Motion - New Docks in Bedwell Bay

	7.1 Bylaw 576, 2020 Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517 2018 Amendment Bylaw - sprinkler inspection fee (2).pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 576, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) By removing the following language from Schedule 2a – Building Permit and Inspection Services:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on December 7, 2020
	Read a Second Time on December 7, 2020
	Read a Third Time on December 7, 2020
	Adopted by the Council on




